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BULLETIN No. 6.

FIELDTRIP TO CORNWALL AND SOUTH DEVON, SEPTEMBER 1968.

The primary object of the fieldtrip to Cornwall and South Devon
on 14-19 September 1968 was to visit the St. Erth Beds (near Hayle, Cornwall),
the fauna of which is probably of Crag age (s.l.). Two members had visited the
site on a previous occasion.

Informal discussions were held and it was decided to travel by van
and to camp at our destination. Two vans (a 15-cwt. and a 5-cwt.) were availablc
and tents and cooking eq uipment were hired from the Ipswich Education Office
(Mr. Britten of their staff was most helpful), supplemented by members
equipment., A meeting was held a few days before departure, and members were
given the itinerary and a list of personal and domestic items thought desirable.
Fach person was also req uired to bring a certain amount of food, e.g. Jjam,
baked beans, butter, sugar, tinned meat -this was given with enough generosity
that our estimated food bills were to be cut considerably. A tent-pitching
practise was held the day before leaving. Nine people (Messrs. C. Garrod,

P. Grainger, T. Jones, S. MacFarlane and R. Markham, and the Misses P. Cresswell,
M. Daniels, S. Giles, and L. Hyde) formed the final party. Their eq uipment

was collected some hours before departure, and participants met in the town
centre, that the vans could leave Ipswich at llp.m. on Saturday 14 September.

After driving through the night, Sunday breakfast was obtained in
Salisbury, before pressing on to Okehampton and our first geological stop.

At Okehampton, the Knowle Quarry was visited, where the grey shales
of the Upper ° ? :Culm Measures were worked along the strike of z synclines
part of an anticline was also seen and pieces of what appeared planty material
found. In the adjoining Brickworks, the folds (upright in the Quarry) were
seen (from a distance) to be overturned. Culm Measures is the name given to
the local Carboniferous rocks, on account of the occasional occurrence in them
of soft sooty coal ("Culm"); the Upper Culm Measures are mainly shales and
sandstone

Late lunch was obtained at Bodmin, and then on to St. Erth, where
cordial relations were established with the pit owner and the owner of the
camping site.

Monday morning was spent collecting fossils from the blue and brown
clays of the St. Erth Beds, in a pit near the old Vicarage. The gastropods
Bittium reticulatum, Nassa and Turritella, and lamellibranch fragments, were
common., The age of the St. Erth Beds Z?Pleistocene) has long been a matter of
debate,

Later in the day, the scenic Kynance Cove, and Land's End were visited,
with a stop to view (from a distance) St. Michael's Mount. Serpentine, belonging
to the Lizard Series (metamorphic rocks of ?Pre-Cambrian age) was studied at
Kynance Coves; the Lizard Peninsula has the appearance of a platform, with an
average height of nearly 300ft. above sea~level. At Land's End, flow lines of
feldspar crystals were well seen in the Lands End Granite, and the weathering
of the rock was .seen in the castellated cliffs.

St. Erth was left on Tuesday morning, in order to travel eastwards
across Dartmoor,

On the journey, evidence was seen of intensive working for minerals,
which are related to the granite masses intruded in Permo-Carboniferous times.
Seen in the distance at several localities were the huge refuse mounds of
white quartz, by-products of the china-clay industry.

The disused Mulberry Openworks at Lanivet was looked at but not
entered; this huge excavation was mainly for tin-ore, the 'stockwerk! (sediment
with numerous mineralised fissures) having to be mined opencast.

On western Dartmoor, the dumps of Wheal Betsy mine (north of Marytavy)
were inspected for minerals. The lode (infilled fissure) was worked for silver-
-lead ore, and siderite, galena and sphalerite may be found here.

The characteristic tors of Dartmoor were noted (again, from a distance).
Buckfastleigh was reached for the night, a2 camping site found after several
tries, and in the evening a brief visit made to the site of a cave belonging
to the William Pengelly Cave Research Centre.



Buckfastleigh was left on Wednesday morning, our first stop being
Torq uay, where Dyer's Quarry, east of the harbour, was visiteds; one member
had visited the site on a previous occasion. The grey Middle Dsvonian
limestone was very fossiliferous, with a marine fauna mainly of compound
corals, and 2 few brachiopods. Folding of the beds was well secen, also the
natural arch at Rockend, known as 'London Bridge'. A works at Kingsteignton
was next visiteds here the clays (and lignite) of the Bovey Tracey Beds
(lake deposits of Oligocene age) are dug from pits and mines, to make
earthenware, tiles, etc.. The pit was viewed but not entered, the rocks
being inspected in the storage sheds, after which we were most kindly given
a guick tour of the weorks, the pottery test-discs being a source of fascination
to mosgt menmbers.

The all-night drive home was punctuated by a few stops, including
Stoneh§nge (unfortunately the gates were closed) and West London {for a brake
repair).

I+t was not peossible to study as much geology as had been hoped because
of the time taken travelling, and in looking after tents, feeding, etc., but
an interesting variety of scenery and rock types were seen.

The fine weather when we were camping (the same time as the East
Anglian floods!) helped enormously. Another success of the mesting was foods
hot meals were cooked on butane stoves, and to make for variety, we had curry
on the seccond night 2t St. Erth and Christmas Pudding for breakfast at
Buckfzstleigh!

Members were organised under several headings -adnministrative,
geological, drivers, mechnnics, tent-organisers, treasurer, cook(s), navigators,
etc., which gave a very workable sharing of responsibility. The cost of petrol,
food, and hire of camping gear came to an extremely reasonable £4 per person.
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R. Markham,

NOTES ON MUSEUMS AND SOCIETIES IN NORFOLK, SUFFOLK AND ESSEX.

IPSWICH MUSEUM
FARLY

The Rev. William Kirby of Barham (near Ipswich) proposed the establishmert
of a museum at Ipswich in the 1790s.

Prior to 1847 a room of the old Town Hall was used for museum purposes;
teeth of the giant shark (Carcharodon megalodon) in the Ipswich Museum were
noticed by Edward Charlesworth in the Magazine of Natural History, 1837.

Simpson Scaman (an Ipswich natural histery dealer) apparently had his
own museum in the 1820s and '30s., but it is not known where.

MUSEUM STREET

The first Museum building was opened in Museum Street in 1847, by private
subscription; after a period of financial difficulties it became the Corporation
Museum in 1852. The first president (of the Corporation museum) was the Reverend
Professor John Stevens Henslow, who brought the fertiliser value of the Red
Crag ‘coprolite nodules' 1o notice. The diggings for these nodules provided
many fossils, and Edward Packard (of Messrs. Packard and Son) when Mayor of
Ipswich (1868~'69) presented the cream of his collection to the museum.

HIGH STREET

Ipswich Mussum moved to its present buildings in 1881.

Dr. John Ellor Taylor was Curator from 1872 to 1893; previogly employed
as a sub-editor in Norwich, where he was a founder of the Norwic¢B Geological
Society and the Norwich Science Gossip Club. He was a popular lecturer (a
course of 20 free puhlic lectures on geology delivered by the curator at
Ipswich in the winter of 1879 was attended by an average of 500 people) and
writer {e.g. book, "Our Common British Fossils", 1885).

In the 19308 a Local Geology Gallery (in addition to the Main Geology
Gallery) was made in a room vacated by the Ipswich Library (when they moved
to Northgate Street in 1924).
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NORFOLK AND NORWICH MUSEUM
Established by a Society in 1824, An early donation still in the
(Norwich Castle) Museum collections is the lower jaw of a fossil'elk' found
in 2 Bog near Tipperary in 1826 and presented by Captain Alexander.
In 1837 and '38, the Rev. Professor Adam Sedgwick, Professor of
Geology in the University of Cambridge, was Fresident of the museum. He first
came to Norwich as a canon of the Cathedral, and gave a course of lectures on
Geology at the museum in 1836 and 1838,
Several important collections were donated in the nineteenth century,
including the Fohst Bed mammalian fossils of the Rev. John Gunn of Irstead,
in 1868. A
Before its reomoval to the Castle, the museum was in St, Andrews St,
(although this was not its original home).
EORWICH CASTLE MUSEUM
The Gaol in Norwich Castle was convented into a museum, and opened
in 1894. The collections formed by the Norwich Museum Society were made over
to the Corporation of the City of Norwich.
James Reeve (the first curator) made an important collection from thr
Norwich Crag of Bramerton, and in 1902 Frank Leney {later to be curator)
published his "Type—-specimens in the Norwich Museum" in the Geological Magazine.
IPSWICH AND DISTRICT NATURAL HISTORY SOCIETY
—~formed 1924 by merging of the Ipswich Scientific Society and the
Ipswich and District Field Club. Jeurnal published until 19395 (see Geol.Group
Bulletin No. 3 for list of geological articles).
IPSWICH SCIENTIFIC SOCIETY
~founded 1869 as the
IPSWICH SCIENCE GOSSIP SOCIETY SOCIETY (name changed to Ipswich Scientific
Society in 1875}.
The first meeting included o description (by Mr. Charlesworth) of the
collection of Red Crag fossils given to the museum by Mr. Packard.
IPSWICH AND DISTRICT FIEFLD CLUB :
~formed 1903, Journal published (see Geol. Group Bulletin No. 3 for
list of geological articles)s; vol.V includes "A List of Type and Figured
Specimens in Ipswich Museum" by A. Bell.
SUFFOLK NATURALISTS SO0CIETY
—~established 1929. Transactions published. {previous to this, occasional
geological articles published by
SUFFOLK INSTITUTE OF ARCHAEOLOGY AND NATURAL HISTORY.
ESSEX FIELD CLUB
—inaugurated in 1880 as the
EPPING FOREST AND COUNTY OF ESSEX NATURALISTS* FIELD CLUB
{name changed to Essex Field Club in 1882).
'Essex Naturalist' published ('Transactions' and 'Proceedings' before
1887). Passmore Edwards Musecum, Newham, opened 1900,
NORWICH GEOLOGICAL SOCIETY
~founded ‘1864, with John Gunn as President and J. E. Taylor as
Secretary. Amalgamated with Norfolk and Nerwich Naturalists Society in 1888,
Proceedings published for a few years Dbefore amalgamation.
NORFOLK AND NORWICH NATURALISTS SOCIETY
~-founded 1869, the year following the first Norwich meeting of the
British Association for the Advancement of Science. Transactions published (see
Geol, Group Bulletin No. 2 for list of geological articles)s 1081 Transactions
("Geology of Norfolk") marked the 10th. anniversary of the
PARAMOUDRA CLUB {GEOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF NOKFOLK).
NCRWICH SCIENCE GOSSIP CLUB
~founded 1870 by J. E. Taylorj known to be - still in existance in the
1930s.. Annual Reports published.
PREHISTORIC SQCIETY OF EAST ANGLIA
—founded 1908 by W.G. Clarke and others in Norwich. Proceedings
published from 1911 (see Geol. Group Bulletin No. 1 for list of geological
articles). Name changed to 'Prchistoric Society' in 1935 (see Geol. Group
Bulletin No. 2 for list of geological articles).

(The above notes formed the basis of a talk gaiven to the Geological
Society of Norfolk by the writer).

R. Markham.



- COMMENT AND NOTES ON 1967-1968

The following publications appeared-

_ Newsletters nos. 7 (3 August 1967), 8 (2 December 1967),
9 (15 February 1968}, 10 (29 June 1968), 11 (15 August 1968)s (all newsletters
of ome page; no. 10 occupied part of page 19 of Bulletin no. 4. Newsletter
no. 6 was published {14 June 1967) in year 1966-'67, but is included under
*finance of publications' for 1967--168).

Bulletins nos. 3 (Augist 1967, E @ pages)
and 4 (June 1968, for Feb. 1968, 19 pages).

Finance of publications (June 1967 ~ August 1968):-

Expenditure £ s d
Postoge, Newsletters 6-11 4 14 4
Postage, Bulletins 3 & 4 1 16 2
Envelopes, Newsletters 6-11 i 0 17
Envelopes, Bulletins 3 & 4 1 1 10
Stencils, Hewsletters 6-11 - 6 0
Stencils, Bulletins 3 & 4 2 5 0
Duplicating Ink - 16 6
Duplicating Paper 3 8 &
Staples (for Bulletin) - 7T 1
Receipt Book - 2 0

£15 18s 64

(Typing, duplicating, time, labour -not charged above)

Income £ 8 d
Subscriptions ('66-'67 received late) - 10 O
Subscriptions ('67-'68) 13 15 O
Bulletins purchased - 15 0
Postage stamps received - 1 4
Competition at meeting - 10 9
Donation - & 5

£15 18s 64

Finance of the coazh run by the Ipswich Geology Group to Corton and
Waveney Valley sites on 10 September 1967 was disappoin¥ings a number of
people did not turn up, and the £5 10s loss was made up by private donatiom.

Meetings were-—
(Christmas ‘dig' cancelled because of the foot-and-mouth epidemic).
Fri. 5 Jan. '68 ~Informal Evening Mecting (slides, exhibits), Ipswich
Museum.
Sun. 21 & Mon, 22 April '68 -Beggars Hollow (Clapgate Lane), Ipswich,
Thurs. 18 July '68  ~Church Lane pit, Claydon (evening}.

Fieldtrips on which Broup members were invited-
Sun. 10 Sept. '67 -Corton, Broome, Homersfield, Hoxne (Paramoudra Club).
Sat. 17 August '68 —Barham and Gremt Blakenham (Ipswich & District
Natural History Society).

The special subscription rate for students and retired members was discontinued
at the end of 1966-'67, as being uneconomical to the Group, and because the
majority of those eligible supported the Group by paying the full subscription.
10/~ wns +he only rate available in 1967-168.

Any fvture fieldtrips by coach will obviously have to have greater
and guarantsed support.

Publication sconomies can be achieved by restricting the number of
complimentary copies, especially of newsletters.

At the Beggars Hollow and Claydon meetings, of attendances averaging 24,
over 50% were non-members. A minor amount of vandalism has taken place at
these sites {not necessarily by mewmbers, nor hecessarily at our meetings), but
in the future, certain meetings may have to be restricted as to the number of
non-members attending.

Activities for the year 1G968-1'69 will be similar to other years, with
minor changes-
—the Newsletter may be slightly enlarged, and the Bulletin reduced.
-a greater variety of meetings will be organised.
-subscription will remain at 10/-, but an associate membership (5/-, for
which one may attend meetings and receive newslettarg, but not receive
bulletins) will also be available.



ATT1CLO8 appearing 1ln pbulietins 3 ana 4 were- 0 770

No. 3 {August 1967)

R. Markham "Battigford Red Crag 'dig'™ PP 1-4.
R. Markham "Interglacial Beds at Bestley, Norfolk" 4-5.
P. Grainger '"Celestine (Strontium Sulphate)" 6.
R. Markham "Note on William's Pit, Claydon" 6.
R+ Markham "Some Examples of Recent Induration from the
Norfolk Coast" 6.
R. Markham "A Forest Bed horse jaw from Paston, Norfolk" Te
(EX) "Bibliography -The Advancement of Science, Vols.
VIT-XXI (1950-1965) 7-8.
(EX) "Bibliography -Antiquity, 1927-1965"
(£X) "Bibliography -The Journal of the Ipswich and Dlstrlct
Field Cludb" 8-9,
(EX) "Bibvliography -The Journal of the Ipswilch and District
Natural History Society" S.
(EX) "Bibliography -Norfolk Research Committee Bulletin" 9-10,
{EX) "Bibliography -Transactions of the Suffolk Naturalists!
Society, Vol. 7 - Vel. 13, part 5" 10-13,
S.J.MacFarlane "The Bourne Park Trench Exposures" 13-14.
R. Markham "Note on a deformed elephant-tooth from the
Forest-Bed" 15-16.
R. Markham "Sudbourne Park Corzlline Crag Dig, 14 May 1967T" 16-18.
S«.J.MacFarlane "Observations at the site of St. Albans Secondary
Schocl, Ipswich” 18.
R. Markham "Some Meat Equivalents of bones from a Rom%gtyubbisis.
ﬁ. Markham "The Foxhall Mandible" 18-21.,
3.J.MacFarlane "An Auger Traverse near Blacksmiths Corner,
Belstead® 22-23,
R.M.. "Notes for .~ Beginners" 22424
R.M.. "Comment, and Notes on 1966-1967" 26-217.

(£X) -extracted by editor).
Ne. 4 (June 1948, for February 1948).
J.S5.H.Colling "A Repcrt on the Cirripedes found in an exposure

of the Red Crag at Beggaers Hollow, Ipawich" 1-2.
J.S.H.Collins "Portunus depurator (Linne.} from the Coralline
Crag of Suffelk® 2.
R. Markham "Preliminary Note on Coralline Crag from Bereholes
between Orford and Aldeburgh® 36,
P.Cambridge "A Derived Brachiopod from the Red Crag" 6.
P. Cambridge  "Reviews" 7-8.
P. Grainger "A Temporary Exposure at Tattingstone® 8-10.
R. Markham "in Introduction to the Geological Collections of
Ipswich Huseum" 10-14.
P. Christie "Belemnites at Lackford® 15.
R. Markham "Some References™ 15-16.
J.S.H.Collins "Cirripedes of the Chalk {(U. Cretaceous) of
Norfolk" 16-17.
R. Markham "A Scalaria from St. Erih" 17-18.
P. Grainger "A Section through the Pasement-Bed of the
: London Clay at Grovelands Pit, Reading" 18.
R.MI [ ]

THE BLACKHEATH BEDS FAUNA OF ABBEY WOOD.

The now mainly degraded section in the bluebelled Lessness Abbey Wood of
the Greater London Council is one of the besb-known sites for the Blackheath
Beds, and has yielded a rich faun=z.

The most complete section is given by Epps and Priest (about 84 feet was
to be seen)i-

Re=gorted hillwash and soil 3 ft.e
Sand, somewhat iron-stained, resting with irregular surface on
Shell-bed, lenticular, - about 3ft. in thickest
resting irregularly on part.
Well-graded, false-bedded, fine white sand about 1ft. seen.

~auger holes showed this bed to be 12ft. thick, and to be
underlain by over two feet of pebble-bed.






